ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 18, 2003
8:01 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCOLUTI ON NO. 4
Proposing an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of
Al aska relating to the duration of a regular session.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 88

"An Act relating to prohibiting the use of cellular telephones
when operating a nmotor vehicle; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 92
"An Act relating to reports by nenbers of the clergy and
custodians of clerical records who have reasonable cause to
suspect that a child has suffered harm as a result of child
abuse or neglect.”

- MOVED CSHB 92( STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 109
"An Act relating to the limtation on paynent of state treasury

warrants; and providing for an effective date."”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 18, 2003



PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 4
SHORT TITLE: CONST AM 90 DAY LEG SLATI VE SESSI ON
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) SAMUELS, ROKEBERG

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/ 21/ 03 0025 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)

01/ 21/ 03 0025 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/03 0025 (H) STA, JUD, FIN

01/21/03 0025 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS

03/11/03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/11/03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 17/ 03 0566 (H COSPONSOR(S):  CROFT

03/ 18/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 88

SHORT TI TLE: PROHI BI T CELL PHONE USE WHEN DRI VI NG
SPONSOR( S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) WOLF

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 10/ 03 0169 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 10/ 03 0169 (H STA, TRA, JUD

02/ 10/ 03 0169 (H REFERRED TO STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 13/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 13/ 03 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 18/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 92

SHORT TI TLE: CLERGY TO REPORT CHI LD ABUSE
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE('S) LYNN

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

02/ 12/ 03 0186 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 12/ 03 0186 (H STA, HES

02/ 19/ 03 0257 (H COSPONSOR( S) :  KERTTULA

03/ 06/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

03/ 06/ 03 (H Heard & Held
M NUTE( STA)

03/ 18/ 03 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMUELS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HIR 4.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY WOLF

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 88.

Rl CHARD BLOCK, Christian Science Conmttee on Publication

for Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 92, said Version | is
accept abl e.

WM THOVAS MOFFATT, Rev., Staff

to Representative Bob Lynn

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: On behalf of the sponsor of HB 92,
expl ai ned the new | anguage in Version | and answered questions.

CH P WAGONER, Lobbyi st

for the Al aska Catholic Conference

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 92 and answered questi ons.

JOANNE G BBENS, Program Adm ni strat or

Division of Family & Youth Services (DFYS)

Departnent of Health & Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing on HB 92, testified
regarding the issue of neglect as it pertains to nmandatory
reporting.

BRADLEY BRI NKMAN, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Human Servi ces Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the statutory definition of
abuse and neglect as it pertains to HB 92; answered questions.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-27, SIDE A

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 18, 2003



Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee neeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Dahlstrom Lynn, Berkowitz, Guenberg, and Wuyhrauch
were present at the call to order.

HIR 4-CONST AM 90 DAY LEGQ SLATI VE SESSI ON

Nunmber 0068

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 4, Proposing an anendnent to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the duration of
a regul ar session.

Number 0109

REPRESENTATI VE RALPH SAMUELS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor,
told the commttee HIR 4 would limt the legislative session
from 120 to 90 days and would be placed before voters in 2004,
the year of the next statew de general election. He said he
feels strongly that 90 days is nore than enough tine in which
the legislature can finish its business. He said limting the
session would also pronote nore citizen [legislators], which
Al askans want; wth a shorter session, nore people can
partici pate. Representative Sanuels said although the fiscal
note shows a savings of approximately $1 nmillion, he thinks it
woul d [save] nore than that. He said having nore laws isn't
necessarily a better thing.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noted one argunent against [HIR 4]: it
woul d give the executive branch nore power. He said he thinks
that is true, but suggested that "we're tal king about nuances.™
If the executive branch does sonething that the legislative
branch finds reprehensible, the Ilegislative branch can cal

itself back into session. He indicated that other argunents
against the resolution are wth regard to rule changes,
statutory changes, the starting date, and the tineframe for
giving notice of a commttee hearing, for exanple. He said all
of those can be taken care of if the voters pass the resol ution.

Number 0342
REPRESENTATI VE  SAMJELS nentioned an  anendnent he hoped

Representative Holm would offer to nmake the First Regular
Session of the Twenty-Fourth Legislature be 120 days and the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2003



Second Regular Session be 90 days, with 90 days [for each
session thereafter]. This would allow new [legislators] to "get
their feet wet."

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS referred to a page ["Alaska State
Legi slature Session Length And Percentage O Days Wth Floor
Sessions, 1981-2000," in the conmttee packet]; in response to a
guestion by Chair Wyhrauch, he confirned that it shows the
actual nunber of days [the legislature] is in session.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked how many tines a resolution Iike HIR 4 has
been i ntroduced before.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS answered probably five or six tinmes; one
attenpt may have noved through the House.

Number 0460

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM observed that the |egislature used to have a
90- day sessi on.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS remarked that it used to have an
unlimted session.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH concurred with Representative Holm that the
| egi sl ature used to neet for fewer than 120 days.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM recalled that his father never spent 120
days [in a session while in the legislature]. He nentioned
| ooki ng back into the history to the 1960s and 1970s.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS pointed out that the nunbers on the
handout go back to the early 1980s.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH noted that the legislature net in June and July
in the early 1980s.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, in response to questions from Chair
Weyhrauch and Representative Sanuels, said he did not neet for
an unlimted session [when he was a | egislator previously]. He
added, "There was no constitutional limt prior to that tineg,
but the actual sessions may well have been limted."

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS, in response to a remark from Chair

Weyhrauch, said he thinks the legislature can do a lot nore with
its tine.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2003



CHAI R VEYHRAUCH conmmented that it seens he's busier on the days
when the legislature isn't in session because of commttee
neetings, constituents, and [special] interest groups, for
exanpl e.

Nunber 0719

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS replied that if Chair Wyhrauch "went for
300 days, then he would have 300 days of that." He said he
thinks it's inherent within the system that the posturing and
positioning takes place at the end, whether it's a 60-day or a
300-day session. The budget will not be addressed until the
| ast two weeks, regardless of the length of session. However
Representative Samuels noted that advantages of HIR 4 would be
saving cash "right up front" and increasing the pool of people
who can run, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said term|limts were in fashion for a
while, but he did not support them subsequent studies have
shown they've seriously upset the balance of power in those
states that enacted them He said the balance of power is
difficult to neasure prospectively. He said he knows that sone
states have significantly shorter session limtations, whereas
sone states have [biennial] sessions.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to a group <called the
Institute of Governnmental Studies (1GS) at the University of
California State Berkley (UCSB). He said he wonders if research
has been done on the effect of shorter |legislative sessions and
t he bal ance of power in states that have enacted it. He said he
has serious reservations and that the 120-day limt has turned
out to be okay. He posited that the question is what is needed
at this tine.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS noted that the National Conference of
State Legislatures (NCSL) has sone reports.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he'd like to see them and to see
if the IGS has done any [studies].

Nunber 0888
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM requested that [Representative Sanuel s] | ook
further back historically than just the early 1980s. He said he

doesn't know if restricting [the length of session] is a bad
i dea because he said he suspects that "work wll fill al

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2003



voi ds. " He said he shares [Representative Sanuels'] concern
regardi ng how |l ong the | egislature runs.

Number 0960

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to an e-mail that showed how many
bills had been introduced and how many had passed. He asked
Representative Sanmuels if he was saying that fewer bills should
be consi dered.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS responded that there will likely be 600-
700 bills by the tinme the legislature is through, although
perhaps 80 or 90 wll pass; sone will be "feel-good bills,"
rat her than big policy changes. He reiterated that having nore
laws isn't necessarily a good thing. Representative Samnuel s
said, "We're asking every departnent in the State of Alaska to
do a little bit better job with their tine and their noney, and
we ought to |look at ourselves and ask the exact sane question.”
He said nmany of the bills that get introduced are so sonebody
can have a press conference, with no intention of noving the
bill. He said he has no issue with that being part of the
nature of politics; however, he doesn't "count that in the big
schenme of things as being inportant public policy."

Number 1103

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON remarked that wunless the legislature
drastically changes the way bills go through the process, he
thinks a 90-day session mght nmean that bills wouldn't actually
be passed until the second session.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS said he thinks some bills would nove
faster, while others would take | onger. He said if he could
| eave earlier, he would be willing to do it nuch differently
than now. He nentioned night neetings.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said things have gotten a l|lot nore
conplicated [in the legislature].

REPRESENTATI VE = HOLM in response to a question from
Representative Gruenberg, said he thinks the budget in 1972 was
$294 nmillion during; only 36 people worked for the legislature
in those days, but now there are over 460. He said, "I think

what Representative Sanmuels is trying to say is that there may
be sone econom es of scale here, but we need to | ook at getting
them rather than what we're doing."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said it used to be the policy that
alnmost all bills were referred to at least two commttees in
each house. He added, "Frankly, that was a check on the
maj ority, because nost bills that nove are nmgjority bills.” He
also said it was in vogue for a while to consider a unicaneral
| egi sl ature.

Nunmber 1287

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt Anendnent 1, |abeled 23-
LS0178\ A. 1, Cook, 3/10/03, which read:

Page 1, line 1:
Del ete "an anendnent”
| nsert "anmnendnents"

Page 1, following line 14:

Insert a new resolution section to read:

"* Sec. 2. Article XV, Constitution of the State

of Al aska, is anended by adding a new section to read:

Section 30. Transition; Regular Legislative
Session Duration. The 2004 amendnent to Section 8 of
Article Il first applies to the Second Regul ar Session
of t he Twent y- Fourth Legi sl ature and appl i es
thereafter. During the First Regular Session of the
Twenty-Fourth Legislature, Section 8 of Article |II
applies as it read on January 1, 2004."

Renunber the follow ng resol ution section accordingly.

Page 1, line 15:
Del ete "anendnent"
| nsert "anendnents"

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS suggested that nenbers could consider
[ ot her nunbers less than 120] if they didn't like the 90 days.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to [language proposed to be
deleted on page 1] line 9, which read, "[FROM THE DATE IT
CONVENES] " . He expl ained that because of the word "FROM', the
session is actually 121 days, rather than 120 days; therefore,
HIR 4 woul d shorten it by 31 days, rather than 30.

Number 1510

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 18, 2003



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to adopting
Amendnment 1 [text provided previously]. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

Nunmber 1548

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that he has been busy and thinks the
90-day session would be difficult. Not wi t hst andi ng that, he
agreed that maybe sone reduction would be a good thing.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS nmi ntained that if session were 300 days,
| egi sl ators would still be busy every day.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the second session is a |ot
different from the first. He said the current session is
unusual because there is largely a new |legislative body as well
as a new governor, and because of "the unusual fiscal situation
we find ourselves in." He said he thinks things are noving nuch
nore slowy this year than in his recollection

Nunmber 1675

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS, in response to a question from Chair
Weyhr auch, referred to a handout showing the limts on
| egi slative session length in other states. He read random
sanpl es showi ng that sone states neet for a different nunber of
days in odd years than in even years, for exanple. He said

Al aska isn't out of the norm but isn't on the | ow end.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that a publication called "Al aska
Legi slature Roster of Menbers 1913-2002" lists the dates that
the | egislature has convened and adj our ned.

Nunber 1824

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he'd like to get a copy of the
portion of the [Alaska] Constitutional Convention mnutes where
the issue was considered of whether to inpose a state
constitutional legislative session |imt. He said he'd also
like the |legislative history of +the current constitutional
amendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS responded, "W did read the mnutes

[fron] when they limted the session from unlimted to 120
days." He said he thinks HIR 4 is good public policy.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is trying to figure out the
previ ous philosophy. He surmi sed that the nunber of |egislative
days excl udes weekends.

REPRESENTATIVE SAMUELS related his belief t hat if t he
| egi sl ature doesn't nmeet in floor session, it isn't counted as a
| egi sl ati ve day.

Nunber 1949

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG noted that he was in the Fourteenth,
Fi fteenth, Si xt eent h, and Sevent eent h [ Al aska] State
Legislatures. He said there was a significant difference in the
nunber of days that the bodies net; the Senate had a policy,
which the House didn't have, that on many days it would gave
itself in and then out again, and that would count as a day in
session. Thus [the Senate] didn't have to get permnission to not
neet, for exanple. [HIR 4 was held over.]

The commttee took an at-ease from8:29 a.m to 8:33 a.m

HB 88-PROH BIT CELL PHONE USE WHEN DRI VI NG

Number 2047

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 88, "An Act relating to prohibiting the use of
cellular telephones when operating a notor vehicle; and
providing for an effective date."”

Number 2060

REPRESENTATI VE KELLY WOLF, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 88, told the commttee the intent of the bill is to limt the
use of cell phones while people are operating an autonobile. He
indicated perhaps a friendly anmendnent would be offered to
change "notor vehicle" to "autonobile". He explained that
"notor vehicle" would restrict cell phone use in just about
anything that has a notor, including airplanes and boats.
Noting that a simlar bill had been before a previous
| egi slature, he said he'd picked the bill back up because of
contacts from constituents who | ost |oved ones due to accidents
caused by cell phone use.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF reveal ed that nost of the argunents against

a bill such as HB 88 state that using a cell phone while driving
is no nore dangerous than eating a hanburger, adjusting the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 18, 2003



radio, or putting on mkeup or nylons while driving, for
exanple. He said his own son asked himif he would get a ticket
[If HB 88 passed], and he admtted that he hinself is just as
guilty as anybody [of using a cell phone while driving].

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said cell phone use while driving disengages
the brain from [necessary] activities. He noted that Al aska has
sonme of the nost adverse driving conditions in the country. He
said he believes in HB 88 because people are responsible for
their actions. He explained that the concern is that [a person
using a cell phone while driving] puts other people at risk. He
said he has a responsibility to protect his famly [which
extends to driving].

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF noted that <currently in Alaska all bus
drivers who carry a CDL [conmercial driver's |license] are
prohibited from using a cell phone. In response to questions
from Chair Wyhrauch, he clarified that although HB 88 would
allow for the use of hands-free cell phones in autonobiles, the
| aw presently doesn't allow the use of either hands-free or
handheld cell phones by CDL drivers who drive buses with a
capacity of 15 or nore passengers.

Number 2307
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked how this differs from hel net | aws.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF noted that a notorcycle rider usually rides
solitarily or with one other person. He revealed that he rode a
notorcycle in the past, and a helnet is the reason that he is
here today. He indicated he doesn't believe a notorcycle is the
sanme wei ght and category as a vehicle. In further response, he
confirmed that taxi drivers don't carry a CDL and therefore
woul d be included under HB 88.

Nunmber 2368

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM referred to a study conducted in North
Carolina, dated May 8, 2001, which found that drivers are nost
often distracted by the follow ng: 29.4 percent by sonething
outside of their vehicle; 11.4 percent by adjusting a radio or
conpact disk [CD] player; 10.9 percent by talking to other
occupants in the car; 2.8 percent by adjusting vehicle or
climate controls; 1.7 percent by eating or drinking; 1.5 percent
by using a cell phone; and 0.9 percent by snoking. He asked,
"Wherein do we respect or request that people use good judgnent,
rat her than making it a law that they use good judgnent?"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE WOLF responded that Representative Holm brings up
sonme good points, and he said he'd take a |ook at that study.
One of the intents of HB 88, he explained, is to bring up
di scussi on about the concerns. He proffered that a distraction
in Alaska could be a 1, 200-pound npbose stepping in the roadway.
Cell phone use is an additional distraction, albeit a snmall one

[ physical l y].
Nunmber 2523

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ referred to the North Carolina study
and said he'd be curious to know if it nmeans 1.5 percent of al
drivers or 1.5 percent of drivers who are using cell phones,
because that would be a huge difference in the inpact.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ questioned the wuse of the word
"operating". He recalled that people can be convicted of
driving while under the influence for operating a vehicle if
they are standing on the side of the road with the ignition on

for exanple. He suggested that poses a problem [in HB 88]
because he surmsed that the intent of the bill is to have
people pull over to the side of the road to use their cell
phones.

CHAIR  WEYHRAUCH suggested that Representative \WoIf ask
Legislative Legal and Research Services, because he said there
are at Jleast two court of appeals decisions regarding the
exanpl e gi ven by Representative Berkow tz.

Nunber 2570

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF confirnmed that the intent of the proposed
| egislation is to have people pull over to the side of the road
to wuse their cell phones, and he concurred wth asking
Legislative Legal and Research Services to adjust the bill's
wording in that regard.

Nunmber 2585

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ remarked that he didn't see a fisca

note from either Departnent of Public Safety (DPS) or the
courts. He said he thinks both would be appropriate, since DPS
woul d be enforcing the law and the courts would have to dea

with their end of it. He added that this would seemto apply to
police officers. I nqui ri ng whet her Representative WIlf had held
any discussions with insurance conpanies regarding the bill, he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 18, 2003



asked, "If we pass this law, will insurance rates conme down in
the state?"

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF replied that he has not discussed that with
i nsurance conpani es and agreed it is something to | ook into.

Nunber 2625

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if anything in the literature that
establishes that people in notor honmes, for exanple, who are
talking on CB [citizens band] radios are less distracted than
soneone tal king on a cell phone.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF answered no, but said it is worth | ooking
i nto.

Nunmber 2661

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recall ed that there have been a nunber
of cases that define "operating” a nmotor vehicle; in one case,
the person was drunk and asl eep and had the radio on. He opined
that anything that can be done to lower accident rates is worth
considering, and said he appreciated Representative Wlf's
i ntroducing HB 88. He pointed out that HB 88 only applies to

notor vehicles, and only on highways. He noted that the bill
doesn't apply to people using a headset, and yet they nmay not be
able to hear a siren, for exanple. He remarked that people

usi ng headsets would have their hands free, but m ght have their
m nds di stracted. He nentioned a young person he knew who died
in a tragic accident that didn't involve a cell phone, but
i nvol ved "sonething simlar."

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF reiterated that his office would be naking
an anmendnment changi ng "notor vehicles" to "autonobiles" in order
to focus on notor vehicles on the road system

Nunber 2761

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ expressed concern about duplicating
existing statutes in the crimnal code. He explained, "I've
al ways thought that the reckless driving and the negligent
driving covered this behavior.” He asked Representative WIf if
he is aware of any cases that have been charged involving
reckl ess or negligent driving and cell phone use.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF answer ed no.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if anyone from the Departnent of
Law or the DPS was scheduled to testify.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said no one had signed up to testify. He
surm sed that Representative WIf wanted to get a sense of what
the questions are and then bring the bill back before the
comm ttee.

Number 2799

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said he believes the legal portions of HB 88
will be [fleshed] out in the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Representative WlIf to do the
research and check with DPS, which keeps fairly exhaustive
records, or with [the Departnment of Lawj. He said, "If it is a
probl emin prosecution, then there m ght need to be a particul ar
fix, which may or may not fit in with what your bill's doing

It's better to have the facts."

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF agreed to do that.

Nunmber 2836

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked Representative WIf if there are any
statistics reporting how nmany people are [using cell phones
while driving]. He questioned whether the |egislature should
make |aws that would affect that nany people at one tine. He
added, "Are we going to tell everybody that they're illegal?"

He conpared it to the seatbelt |aw or the notorcycle hel met |aw.

He remarked that the notorcycle helnmet law is for the benefit of

those who get in the crash, not for the benefit of the public.

He opined that there is a problemw th where the benefits derive
and what kind of costs there will be. He noted that there is a
zero fiscal note attached to the bill; however, it cones from
the Departnment of Law, not DPS. He asked, "If we don't know how
many we're going to affect, can we get a decent fiscal note, and
will it come from[DPS], as well?"

Number 1900

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said he could contact DPS and doesn't know
the statistics on how many people use a cell phone in general or
while driving, specifically. He comented that its wuse is
becom ng nore common, as a safety line for many; for exanple, he
knows many people who have crashed planes while flying in Al aska
and whose cell phones were a lifeline. He included boating as

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 18, 2003



an activity for which a cell phone has been Iifesaving. Sayi ng
cell phone use is expanding beyond |andline use, he referred to
a study which reported that by the tinme all the fiber optics are
| aid throughout the nation, they wll be nade obsolete by the
cel |l phone.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said he is torn over the issue because he uses
his own cell phone during his 20-m nute one-way commute to work
in order to return calls and check his voice mail.

TAPE 03-27, SIDE B
Nunmber 3002

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH opined that the worst of cell phone use is the
distraction of punching in the nunbers in heavy traffic. He
said he knows of cases when peopl e have been found negligent and
had to pay damages because of cell phone use and operating notor
vehi cl es negligently. He commented that the previously stated
guestion regardi ng insurance conpanies was probably a good one
because they are probably having to pay coverage on sone of
t hose acci dents.

Number 2957
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG rel ated that sonme close friends of his
were killed by a young man who was driving and |eaned down to

pick up a soda fromthe floor of his truck.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH concl uded, "So, whatever we can do to make life

safer is great; it's just this tension between making it safer
and interference wth personal liberties and i ndividual
responsibility.” He described it as the classic policy call.
Number 2919

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said he is the last person who'd want to
stand before the commttee and deny freedom of speech or freedom
of novenent. He said the encouragenment of HB 88 is to attenpt
to direct people to use a hands-free unit or to pull off the
side of the road. He indicated a correlation between hands-free
cell phones and responsible driving. He noted that sone cel
phone units are even voi ce-activated.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that HB 88 woul d be hel d over.

HB 92- CLERGY TO REPCORT CHI LD ABUSE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 18, 2003



Nunber 2828

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 92, "An Act relating to reports by nenbers of the
clergy and custodians of clerical records who have reasonable
cause to suspect that a child has suffered harm as a result of
child abuse or neglect.”

Nunber 2810

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS), Version 23-LS0257\1, Lauterbach, 3/12/03, as a
wor k draft.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH sai d he wanted to hear from Ri chard Bl ock
Number 2761

RI CHARD BLOCK, Christian Science Committee on Publication for
Al aska, noted that he'd testified at the [March 6, 2003] hearing
on HB 92, at which tinme he'd indicated his organization didn't
take a position on HB 92 in general, but recognized the
inportant problemit attenpts to address. Mentioning a proposed
CS fromthe prior hearing [Version D, adopted March 6, 2003], he

poi nted out that an inportant provision in the original bill had
been renoved; however, he'd spoken with Representative Lynn's
staff, who [added] Ianguage in Version I. He said [the

Christian Science Commttee on Publication for Alaska] finds
Version | accept abl e.

Number 2690

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that wi thout objection, Version | was
before the commttee for discussion.

Number 2685
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN, sponsor of HB 92, thanked nenbers for their

constructive questions and concerns expressed at the previous
heari ng. He said the whole purpose of HB 92 is to hel p protect

children and all the various faith comunities. He told the
committee that he thinks they wll |Iike the <changes [in
Version I]. He deferred to his staff to address those
guesti ons.

Nunber 2628

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 18, 2003



WM THOVAS MOFFATT, Rev., Staff to Representative Bob Lynn,
Al aska State Legislature, began by noting that Chair Wyhrauch
had expressed concern previously regarding abuse of elders.
Fat her Thomas said, "I think, when we talked with your office,
that's covered in another section of the bill under 'abuse of
the vulnerable', where, parent hetically, 15 categories of
i ndi viduals who are required to report - nunber 10 of which is
the clergy. Here, of course, in this bill, we're seeking to add
clergy as [paragraph (9)]."

FATHER THOVAS referred to the concerns stated by Representatives
Hol m and Seaton wth respect to the reporting of neglect as well
as abuse. He explained that the language in Version | was
changed so that the clergy would only be required to report
abuse. He referred to page 2, beginning on line 10, which read:

a clergy nenber is not required to report a reasonabl e
suspicion of harm to a child if the clergy nenber
bel i eves that the harm cones only from negl ect.

FATHER THOVAS noted that because of a query by Representative
Berkowi tz during the previous hearings asking for the definition
of a "recognized religious conmmunity", [the sponsor] had renoved

the word "recognized". He said Representative G uenberg had
brought up a question regarding the "l ook-back" provision in the
original bill that would only apply to the clergy. Fat her

Thomas said that provision was renoved "to place the clergy on
an even keel wth the other eight categories required to
report."

FATHER THOWVAS reported that at "bishop" was added at the request
of Representative Dahlstroms office on [page 3, line 1] of
Version |; "Christian Science practitioner” was added at the
behest of a representative of the Christian Science Church;
"pastor” was added in response to testinony from "the
evangel i cal comunity"; and the phrase "or person in a simlar
| eadership position" was added as a "catch-all." Father Thomas
opi ned that the changes nmake HB 92 a nuch better bill

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG and REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ comrended
Representative Lynn and Fat her Thormas for their efforts.

Nunber 2369
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he is a strong believer in the

separation of church and state; one reason is that it protects
churches fromthe state. Expressing concern that the definition

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 18, 2003



of "clergy" singles out a particular faith, he referred to the
definition of penitential comunication in Section 2 [page 2,
lines 17-23], which read:

In this subsection, "penitential comunication” neans

a comunication intended to be in confidence,
including a sacranental confession nmade to a clergy
menber, who, in the course of the discipline or

practice of the clergy nenber's church, denom nation

or organization, is authorized or accustoned to hear
those comunications and, under the discipline,
t enet s, cust ons, or practices of the church,
denom nation, or organization, has a duty to keep
t hose conmuni cati ons secret.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said [the definition] in sone ways
makes those disciplines, tenets, and custons elenents of proof
at a trial and thus puts a judge or a jury in a position of
determ ning whether these are disciplines, tenets, or custons,
which seens to cross the barrier between church and state. He
explained that he is just looking for a preferable way of
defining what "penitential comrunication” mneans, because one
ot her problem he has with [Section 2, text stated previously] is
that it doesn't describe whom [the comunication] is between.
It could be between people who are repeating hearsay and gossip,
for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ therefore suggested adding "between
clergy nenber" after the word confidence [on line 18], followed
perhaps by "and a penitent”". He said he doesn't think it needs
to be any broader, and that "getting into" [the subject of I|ines
19-23] is incredibly problematic.

Nunber 2210

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG referred to part of [Section 1,
paragraph (9), page 2, lines 9-12], which read:

(9) clergy nenbers, except as provided in AS
47.17.021 and except that, notw t hst andi ng ot her
provisions of this section or this chapter, a clergy
nenber s not required to report a reasonable
suspicion of harm to a child if the clergy nenber
bel i eves that the harm cones only from negl ect.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested that rather than "discipline,
tenets, custons, or practices", the focus could be on whether

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 18, 2003



the clergy nenber believed he/she had a duty to keep the

comuni cati on secret. Furthernore, regarding line 12, he asked
whet her that belief should be subjective or objective. He
expl ai ned, "Wien you say 'if sonebody believes,' that's

subj ective whether this person actually believed." He defi ned
"objective" as whether it was a reasonable belief - "whether the
person reasonably believed ... they had a duty to keep the

conmmuni cations secret, on the one hand, and on the other,
reasonably believed that the harm cane only from neglect."

Number 2155

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks the word "penitent”
cones fromthe word "repent.” He added, "I don't know you want
to leave it to only people who are repenting." He said he

thinks the priest-penitent privilege is the broadest evidentiary
privilege in the |aw He related his belief that clergy should
be absolutely protected in their ability to communicate wth
anyone who cones to themin a confidential manner, not just with
menbers of their congregation.

Number 2095

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to Rule 506 of the [Rules of
Evi dence, handed out by Representative Guenberg during the

previous hearing on HB 92]. He said he supports the intent of
the bill, but asked if [the issues being discussed by the
commttee] would nodify the [Rul es of Evidence].

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH sai d no. In response to a followup question,
he said, "There's absolutely no nodification of a court rule or
evidence rule in this. It may have influenced its application
or interpretation or provide nuance, but ... specifically to
this bill, there's no court or evidentiary rule anmendnent.”
Nunber 1999

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked, "The sanme nen that added a
subsequent trial - the penitent or the individual - could assert
the privilege in evidentiary fashion, which would preclude
adm ssion of a confession?"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that Chip Wagoner was shaking
his head and appeared to want to say sonething.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that Bob Flint, an attorney, was also
avai l abl e for comment.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 18, 2003



Number 1945

CH P WAGONER, Lobbyist for the Al aska Catholic Conference, said
that conference is the entity that the Roman Catholic bishops of
Al aska use to speak on public policy matters. He noted that the
exception to the evidentiary rules is very limted in that it
only applies to the proceedings and actions that are before the
court.

MR. WAGONER nentioned an Al aska case in which a man who was a
clergy nenber, pastor, and psychol ogist counseled a nenber of
his congregation; during that session, the nenber brought up the
fact that he'd sexually abused a child, and the clergyman
reported it. The case went to court, and the court held that
the [exception in the evidentiary rules] didn't apply because
there was no case, action, or proceeding at the tine of the
reporting. Therefore, M. Wagoner said he didn't think the
[ Rules of Evidence] exception would "apply to this issue of
reporting, at this tine."

Number 1814

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded, "I appreciate this. | just
wanted to nmake sure that it was brought out and that we figured
out whether we had a problem before we forward this."

Nunmber 1803

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks the relevance of M.
Wagoner's testinony to Representative Seaton's question is that
the [evidentiary rule] only applies to a person who is
testifying in court. He asked, "Am 1 right?"

MR. WAGONER replied that the issue is that the [evidentiary
rule] did not apply in the aforementi oned case because there was
no action preceding the case at the time of the reporting. He
said he was absolutely sure that this is what that case said.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ suggested the issue m ght be discussed
in the House Judiciary Standing Commttee.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said the current committee mnust decide if it
believes it's in the state's interest to have information of
child abuse reported that was obtained in a "religious forum"

Number 1625

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG  asked, " f a per son gets a
comuni cation and then reports it, does that basically waive the
privilege, in sone manner, in a subsequent court proceedi ng?"

MR. WAGONER said yes, according to the way he'd read the
af orenenti oned case.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he wanted to flag [this issue] for
the House Judiciary Standing Commttee. He added that he is
"happy enough with where the bill is.”

Number 1531

MR. BLOCK referred to Representative Berkowitz's previous
comment about the definition of "clergy nenber"” and including
reference to a specific religion; M. Block surmsed that
Representative Berkowitz was referring to the Christian Science
practitioner. M. Block explained that any reference to that
was renoved in the first proposed CS. He nentioned a past
di scussion with Father Thomas and a request for the |anguage -
he said he thinks it was "religious practitioner” - to be put
back in. He said he thinks the concern was that the | anguage
wasn't clearly defined. At the tinme of that discussion, M.
Bl ock said, [Father Thonmas] asked if using the term "Christian
Science practitioner” wouldn't be nore specific and nore
acceptable. M. Block said he agreed with Father Thomas at that
time, which is "howthat termgot in there.”

MR. BLOCK noted that the term "religious healing practitioner”
is currently used in statute and is "sonmewhat nore generic, but
also sufficiently specific.” He said, "W would accept that
| anguage, as well, if that wuld tend to nmke it |ess
denom national, but preserve the intent of both our concerns and
the objectives of the bill."

Nunber 1410

MR. BLOCK referred to discussion regarding the definition of
"penitential comunication” as being between the penitent and
the clergy. Noting that he isn't sure what that neans w thout a
definition of who the penitent is, M. Block pointed out that
sonebody comng to a religious healing practitioner could be the
al l eged perpetrator seeking healing and how to change his/her

own course of action; however, it could be the victim seeking
healing of the inpact that such an event had. He added, "That
comuni cation, as well, wunder the tenets and bylaws of our

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 18, 2003



church, [is] required to be kept confidential. And, certainly,
we would want to see those conmunications protected as well.”
M. Block said [the Christian Science Comrittee on Publication
for Alaska] thinks the current |anguage in subsection (a) is
appropriate and sufficiently specific, and that it i's
appropriate to nove forward with the bill

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said, "I'm not sure he had your intent down,
Representative Berkowtz. | didn't pick that up from your Iline
of questioning."

Nunber 1298

JOANNE G BBENS, Program Adm nistrator, Division of Famly &
Youth Services (DFYS), Departnment of Health & Social Services,
said she wanted to share sone information regarding to the issue
of neglect as it pertains to mandatory reporting. She rem nded

the commttee that all "current nmandated reporters" are required
to report if they have reasonable cause to suspect that a child
has suffered harm as a result of neglect. She suggested it is

inportant to ook at the issue of neglect as it pertains to the
actual child-in-need-of-aid (CINA) statutes in AS 47.10, which
govern | egal issues regarding the departnent's taking custody of
a child; that happens when the court determnes a child could be
a child in need of aid. Citing AS 47.10.014 and AS 47.10.019,
she told nenbers:

Recei vi ng a call reporting negl ect does not
automatically nmean that a social worker conmes to the
door and takes custody of a child. Very often, by

receiving a call concerning neglect, the division is
able to assess the situation and provide help that the
famly may not have been able to receive, had we not
been call ed. Oten, we are able to arrange for
assistance to famlies with things |ike protective
daycare, which they would not have access to wthout
our intervention.

In other situations, a call concerning neglect may
uncover nore serious issues in the honme, for exanple,
substance or physical abuse. Responding to concerns
of neglect often helps us to assist famlies before
situations get worse. Sonmetimes the stresses in
famlies can escalate to situations where children are
nore severely abused. And responding before those

t hi ngs happen may protect children and help famlies.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 18, 2003



| guess the point |I'm nmaking here is that just because
a famly is poor is not reason, in and of itself, to
call DFYS for a concern of neglect. | would also |ike
to add that should nenbers of the <clergy becone
mandated reporters, the division would work with the
clergy on providing education and training being a
mandat ed reporter, |like we do for others.

Nunber 1042

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recal |l ed that a nunber of years ago the
| egi sl ature anended perhaps AS 47.17 to include enotional harm
[as an abuse] that nust be reported. He asked where the
citation of statute is that says what people nust report.

M5. G BBENS responded that AS 47.17.020 lists persons required
to report, and AS 47.17.290 gives the definition.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to the definition of child
abuse or neglect in AS 47.17.290. He said, "My recollection is,
it was required under federal |aw And that's already in the
law, and | think that whether or not we add neglect in this
bill, that's what you have to report under current |aw, right?"

M5. G BBENS answered yes. She added that she is not certain
that the way the current version of the bill is witten would,
potentially, alter that.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks this law should be
absolutely congruent with the rest of the |[|aw O herw se,
federal funding m ght be jeopardi zed, for exanple.

M5. G BBENS said she wasn't sure it would jeopardize federal
f undi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recal | ed t hat t he | egi sl ature
specifically had to put that |anguage in to conply with federa
|l aw. He said he doesn't want to violate federal |aw

Nunber 0794

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said his sole concern regarding the bil
is that the commttee may be putting the clergy "in a spot"” of
reporting sonething that may [result] in violating statute and
being guilty of a msdeneanor for every case when they have a
suspicion that there may be negl ect.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 18, 2003



Nunmber 0580

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ suggested that the previously stated
intent of DFYS to hel p nenbers of the clergy should be reflected
in a positive fiscal note.

[ Ms. G bbens nodded in agreenent. ]
Nunber 0524

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that [HB 92] has a subsequent
referral to the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Conmmittee. He opined that it would be nore appropriate
that it go to the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN concurred.
Nunmber 0512

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG sai d he supports Representati ve
Seaton's previous renarks. He pointed out that [Ms. G bbens']
initial discussion of the definition of neglect cane from a
different part of Title 47. He explained that this doesn't deal
with [AS] 47.10, but [AS] 47.17. "And the definitions you were
using do not apply,” he said, offering his belief that the
definitions in AS 47.17 apply to this bill, and that there is a
definition of what has to be reported already in [AS] 47.17,
which he'd just read. He sought a legal opinion on whether
using a definition that excludes neglect mght possibly not be
in conpliance with federal |aw

M5. G BBENS deferred to M. Brinknman, who she said hears the
civil DFYS cases.

Number 0339

BRADLEY BRI NKMAN, Assistant Attorney General, Human Services
Section, Civil D vision (Juneau), Departnent of Law, told the
committee he is one of tw attorneys who does the day-to-day
CI NA cases for Southeast Al aska. Referring to Representative
G uenberg's question, he said he didn't know. Mentioning the

mandates required by the domestic violence laws that went into
effect in the last five years and the nonies that have flowed
through the state with regard to that, he suggested Ms. G bbens
m ght know t hat .

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 18, 2003



MR. BRINKVMAN highlighted that AS 47.17 mrrors many of the
requirenents in AS 47.10. The mandatory reporting | aws are nade
to address neglect and abuse that a child may suffer and to stop
that abuse before it becones severe or before renoval from the
hone is necessary. He said abuse and negl ect have always been
consi stent throughout both sides of the statute, and to carve
out an exception in one-half of the statute, for one out of nine
categories [of reporters], nmay lead to confusion |ater. For
exanple, those in the other eight categories may say they only
want to report neglect or only want to report abuse.

MR. BRI NKMAN sai d he understands Representative Seaton's concern
regarding interference with the rel ationship between a pastor or

priest and his congregation, but the bottomline is this: t he
end result of neglect is the same for the child as it is wth
sexual abuse. He said a parent, because of an addiction |ike

ganbling, for exanple, my be neglecting a child by not
providing that child wth food, which could result in
mal nutrition or starvation, or [not providing the hone wth]

fuel oil, which mght result in pneunonia. He said, "We think
that that should apply equally in the mandatory reporting
requi renents, just as abuse, because the ultimate result - the
harmto the child - would be ... the sane."

TAPE 03-28, SIDE A
Number 0001

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said all the other [categories currently
required to report] are required to "have sone kind of a state
license,” but clergy are not. He said he thinks "we" are
expanding the state's reach too far into the mtter of the
clergy by requiring that clergy nenbers, who are not |icensed by
the state, report anyone to the police who they suspect fails to
provi de necessary food, care, clothing, shelter, or nedical
attention for a child.

Nunber 0172

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that both the original bill and the
proposed CS [Version 1] have received broad ecclesiastical
support. He said he thinks clergy would be the ones to bring
forward concern or opposition, and he has heard none.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that there had been response from

clergy which indicated they had |ooked at the bill from the
aspect of child abuse, not fromthe aspect of neglect.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 18, 2003



Nunmber 0289

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he supports the |anguage of Version |I.
He said [Representative Seaton's concerns] may be included in
future legislation, but are "beyond the scope of what we're
trying to do here."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ai ned that the idea behind his concern
cane from a witness's testinony during a previous hearing that,
in part, negl ect S based on a community standard.
Representative Seaton said his reading of the |law showed that is
not the case, however; every clergy [nmenber], whether in a rura

or urban area, would be required to report. The reporting is in
state statute; it is not a conmunity standard. He reiterated
that this is his problem with the bill "if it goes back the
ot her way."
Nunmber 0443

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH, referring to the neglect 1issue, community
standard, and a previous statenent by Representative Berkowtz

said the definition is this: "You know it when you see it, and
you don't know it wuntil a jury defines what negligence and
negl ect was." A jury of peers defines the community standard

[as it relates to neglect], he suggested.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that the bill doesn't ask the
clergy to define a comunity standard, but asks them to report,
based on a statute.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH remarked, "Except from the |aw, except for
neglect. | understand that."

Nunmber 0515

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noted that the commttee is naking policy
for the whole state, not for Anchorage or Fairbanks, but for
many [rural] places that will have a different idea of how to
par ent . He suggested that perhaps what the commttee is
addressing is the tolerance of society for aberrant behavior or
for what is called "antisocial" behavior - behavior that does
not neet the norns. He said he has a problem with clergy's
having to subscribe to the confines of the state's definition of
what neglect is. He said it is a difficult situation. He said
"none of wus sitting here" wants children to be negl ected. He
related that his wife, as a teacher, sees many children wth
different ranges of parental care. He opined that it would be a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 18, 2003



good thing if people had to pass a test to becone parents,
al though he admtted society can't do that. He said [the
commttee] obviously has to consider policy for the whole state
that allows some flexibility.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM told the commttee that he grew up on a

homest ead w th nothing. He said people today in Anchorage or
Fai rbanks could say that his parents abused him because he
didn't have a lot of things. He said he was not abused; he
didn't know any better. He said there are no definitive terns

for what neglect really is and that he doesn't want to nake
crooks out of the clergy.

Number 0727

MR. BRI NKMAN, regarding the other eight categories [required to
report abuse], noted that paid enployees of crisis intervention
progranms, for exanple, do not have Iicenses. Furt hernore, he
noted that although childcare providers do have I|icenses, they
probably have a lot less training than clergy nmenbers have.

MR. BRI NKMAN explained, "All this sinply does is say, ... when
you have a ... reasonable suspicion that this child may not be
getting fed, may not be getting mnedical care, ... my be
suffering from pneunoni a because the parents used the nonies to
go out to play bingo, to drink, or whatever, you report."” He
said DFYS then | ooks at the report, but may do nothing because
it mght not agree with the standard of the person reporting
He said, "This just gets an early intervention, an early |ook
the majority of the time, without renoving the children fromthe
hone. " In fact, he stated, [the reporting] sonmetinmes helps in
putting in services such as fuel oil assistance or food stanps.

MR. BRINKMAN said, "So, from the division's standpoint and the
departnent's standpoint, neglect can end up in as serious a
situation as sexual abuse.”™ He added, "And if we are attenpting
to provide for the safety of the child, we are sinply asking
that the same statutory matters apply to the clergy as to the
other eight ... categories.”

Number 0930

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM suggested to M. Brinkman "It's different
than saying you're 'sinply' just reporting. You're sinply
having a m sdeneanor if you don't report." He said he thinks
the situation is different; that, in essence, is where his

problem[with the issue] lies.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 18, 2003



MR. BRI NKMAN concurred. He said, "W have put that, as a
society, on school aides, daycare providers, policenen, donestic
vi ol ence fol ks, nurses.” He agreed that it is a policy call.

REPRESENTATI VE HCOLM opined that all who work those [jobs M.
Brinkman |isted] are paid to do what they do.

VR. BRI NKMAN responded that sone aren't paid, but  work
voluntarily.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM replied, "Mst are.” He said he and M.
Bri nkman could "go round and round with this"™ wthout changing
each other's mnds, and stated his appreciation.

MR. BRI NKMAN asked that the committee consider the departnent's
position with regard to this matter.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH sai d the questions being asked are an indication
of the commttee's concern for [the issue].

Nunmber 1017

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated, "I don't believe, in this area
of the law, it's a community standard. | think it's a statew de
standard. " He suggested that these issues generally arise in

CI NA cases and are sonething the judge interprets as a statutory
st andar d.

MR. BRI NKMAN responded that there is some community standard put
into place. He explained, "Neglect may be different in a
village with the ability to get nedical care froma physician to
address a problem as opposed to a health aide.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "But it's not |ike the statute
for nmedical mal practice or sonething |like that."

MR. BRI NKMAN sai d no.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he sees potential for at |east
four anendnents.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated his intention to ask for the next
committee of referral to be switched from the House Health,
Education and Social Services Standing Comnmttee to the House
Judiciary Standing Committee so that the latter can address the
| egal i ssues.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 18, 2003



Nunmber 1156

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered Amendnent 1: On page 3, line 2
[of Version 1], between "rabbi"™ and "practitioner”, delete
"Christian Science" and add "religious healing".

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN sai d he woul d have no problemw th that.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH announced that there being no objection
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

Number 1285
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered Conceptual Anmendnent 2, as

fol |l ows: On page 2, line 18, in between "intended" and "
add "by the penitent” or whatever the correct term woul d be.

to",

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that he wanted to clarify
that ["comunication intended to be in confidence"] does not
mean that the clergy "intended". In response to a request for
further clarification, he nentioned the evidentiary rule and
said the privilege belongs to the penitent, not to the clergy.

Number 1330

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked M. Wgoner to address the proposed
amendnent .

MR. WAGONER said that w thout doing research, he doesn't think
the privilege in the Rules of Evidence applies to the penitent.
He added, "I think that nmay also apply to the clergy nenber
al so."

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said the comentary, subsection (c),
"Who May Claimthe Privilege" fromthe [Rules of Evidence] nekes
clear that the privilege belongs to the communicating person.
He suggested that "comrunicating person” could be used, rather
than "penitent”. He continued:

However, a prima facie authority on the part of the
clergyman to claim the privilege on behalf of the
person is recognized. The discipline of t he
parti cul ar church and the discreetness of t he
clergyman are believed to constitute sufficient
saf eguards for the absent comrunicating person.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he wants it clear that "we" are
tracking the evidence rule in this respect. He said he would
change the anendnent from "penitent” to "conmunicating person”.

Nunmber 1458

MR, BLOCK said if any changes are to be made, the one suggested
by Representative Guenberg is the right one because "by the
comuni cating person” could include both the victim and the
wrongdoer. He said it is inportant for both to be encouraged to
comuni cate with the clergy.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH cl arified that Conceptual Anendnent 2, page 2,
lines 17-18, would read: "a communication intended by the
communi cating person to be in confidence".

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN sai d he had no objection.
Nunber 1512
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ suggested the foll ow ng:

Just to be clear on this, then it would seem to ne,
... "a comunication by a communicating person to be
held in confidence to a clergy nenber". And then |
think you can have a period after "the clergy nmenber”,
and the subsequent portion of that paragraph is not
necessary.

MR. WAGONER stated the preference of keeping the additional
clause in the |anguage because "sacranental confession” s
extrenely inportant to [the Roman Cat holic] Church

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ told M. Wagoner that "sacranental
confession” may have a particular application for [the Roman
Catholic] Church, but he doesn't think it's the state's business
to determine what a sacranental confession is. He opined that
it is particularly critical, from the church's perspective, to
determne on its own what a sacramental confession is.

MR. WAGONER r esponded:

As long as the intent of this commttee in deleting
t hat | anguage is that the church's sacranental
confession is an exception to the reporting, because
if you take the Ilanguage out and you don't say
anyt hing about that, then the court could look into

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 18, 2003



the legislative history, and would say, "Ch, they took
it out." That's ny concern.

Nunber 1612

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said he thinks the evidence would
support his wunderstanding that a sacranmental confession the

Catholic Church is intended to be held in confidence. In
response to a question from M. Wagoner, he added, "Even w t hout
this |l anguage.” He continued as foll ows:

But | just don't think that the church ever wants to

be in the position of going into a court and trying to
prove that, a) it is a sacranental confession, and b)
that it should be held in confidence. That's not
sonething, from the <church's perspective, | think
you'd ever want to have happen.

MR. WAGONER commented that he doesn't think his church would
ever have a problemif it had to go to court and define what its
sacranental confession is.

Nunber 1649

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG restated Conceptual Amendnent 2,
page 2, beginning on line 17, as foll ows:

In this subsection, "penitential comunication” neans
a communication to a nenber of the clergy intended by
the communicating person to be in confidence to the
cl ergy nenber.

He added, "And we stri ke the remai nder of that paragraph.”
Nunmber 1826

MR, BLOCK said, since the definition of "clergy" has been
expanded, it would cover nobst situations; however, the value of
including the |anguage [on page 2, |lines 19-23] does add scope
for those clergy who are part of a religious denom nation where
a penitential conmunication or sacranental confession isn't part

of its rites. He indicated the |anguage nakes it clear that
even though sonme churches don't have those rites, they are stil
pr ot ect ed. In response to a question from Representative

G uenberg, he clarified that the aforenenti oned anendnent to the
| anguage [on lines 17-18] defines "penitential comrunication” in
a limted way, which technically is probably adequate; however,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 18, 2003



he did appreciate the inclusion of the |anguage [on |ines 19-23]
"because it does then, specifically, include in its scope, our
situation.”

Number 1952

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that in Title 1 of the genera
statutes the word "including” is defined to nmean "including but
not limted to"; therefore, he concurred with M. Bl ock

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested the |anguage, per M. Block's and
Representative Guenberg's discussion, should be as follows [on
page 2, lines 17-23]:

In this subsection, "penitential comunication"” neans
a conmunication to a nenber of the clergy intended by
the communicating person to be in confidence to the
clergy nenber who, in the course of the discipline or
practice of the clergy nenber's church, denom nation

or organization, is authorized or accustoned to hear
those comunications and, under the discipline,
tenets, cust ons, or practices of the church,
denom nation, or organization, has a duty to keep
t hose conmuni cati ons secret.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ [and an unidentified conmmttee nenber]

obj ect ed. He said the I|anguage needs to be broader and
expl ai ned:
Wen we put the ... disciplines, tenets, custons, or

practices of any church denom nation or organization
before a trier of fact, that's an encroachnent on

freedom of religion, and | am loath to go there. I
think the salient feature of what we're trying to do
in this bill is require reporting. We're not putting
the religion itself on trial. It's a different thing

to put the belief of the clergy nenber and the belief
of the communicating individual on trial about the
confidence. But when you put the tenets, custons, and
principles in front of a jury, that's sonmething

altogether different, and | think we ought not go

t here.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "I don't want to limt it to
those people; | want to say they are included along wth other
people, as well." He offered his estimation that the foregoing

is the commttee's intent here.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG suggested a possible conceptual

anendnent on line 21: "and including comunication to clergy
peopl e who, under the discipline, et cetera, have a duty to keep
the communication secret.” He added, "So, it would be including
| anguage that'd be exenplary, but it wouldn't be limted to
t hose people.” He asked how that woul d be.

Nunber 2085

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ r esponded:

You're adding elenments of pr oof her e, in the
"including" section. And this mght be tedious for
people who are paying attention who don't actually
have to prove things in court, but | think it's a very
critical distinction. You' re changing the focus

of what we're trying to do here. The focus should be
very narrow. W are trying to focus on penitential
comuni cation being the ... comunication that's held
in confidence.

When we bring in the tenets and principles and custons
and practices of a religious entity, that's something
separat e. And | don't think that those custons and
practices should ever, ever cone before a court or a
trier of fact.

Nunber 2134

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH reiterated that the people testifying as
representatives of churches haven't said they have a problem
with the | anguage. Regarding the broader context and separation
of church and state, he noted that the commttee is currently
dealing wwth "church” in the bill, so it can't be ignored. He
said he appreciates [Representative Berkowitz's] concern, but
suggested the issue may be one for the House Judiciary Standing
Conmittee to address.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH announced that he wuld Ilike to act on
Representative G uenberg's specific anendnent, "leaving that
| anguage in there,” to acconmpbdate the concerns expressed by
M. Wagoner and M. Bl ock. Wth regard to the philosophical
notion of the discipline, tenet, custom and practice, he
suggested that needs to be worked on.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 18, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he would commt to work on this in
the House Judiciary Standing Commttee with the sponsor and
Representati ve Berkow tz.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked whether there was any objection to
[ Conceptual Anendnent 2, as anended], as previously read. He
clarified that it would be: "for communication to a nenber of
the clergy intended by the comunicating person to be in
confidence to the clergy nenber".

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN added, "Comma, 'including' ."
CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH sai d the [other] |anguage woul d stay the sane.

[No objection was stated, and Conceptual Anendnent 2, as
anended, was treated as adopted.]

Nunber 2120

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to report CSHB 92, Version 23-
LS0257\ 1, Lauterbach, 3/12/03, as anmended, out of conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, CSHB 92(STA) was reported from the
House State Affairs Standing Commttee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
Number 2158
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
10:13 a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- March 18, 2003



